

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
COMMITTEE ON APPROPRIATIONS

Room 400, City Hall
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Monday, March 7, 2016
1:13 p.m.

PRESENT:

COUNCILWOMAN MARIA D. QUINONES-SANCHEZ - CHAIR
COUNCILMAN KENYATTA JOHNSON - VICE
COUNCILWOMAN JANNIE L. BLACKWELL
COUNCILMAN ALLAN DOMB
COUNCILMAN BOBBY HENON
COUNCILMAN DAVID OH
COUNCILWOMAN CHERELLE L. PARKER

BILLS: 160134, 160136, 160137, 160150

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 2

1 - - -

2 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Thank
3 you. Thank you for your patience. The
4 Appropriations hearing will now be called to
5 order having established a quorum. To my
6 far right, Councilwoman Blackwell,
7 Councilman Domb, and to my left Councilwoman
8 Cherelle Parker and Councilman Henon.

9 Will the Clerk read the title of the
10 bill -- the bills.

11 THE CLERK: Bill No. 160134: An
12 Ordinance authorizing transfers in
13 appropriation for Fiscal Year 2016 from the
14 General Fund, the Department of Revenue, the
15 Board of Trustees of the Free Library of
16 Philadelphia, the Commission on Human
17 Relations, the Auditing Department, and the
18 Grants Revenue Fund, the Director of Finance
19 - Provision of other grants to the General
20 Fund, the Mayor - Office of Community
21 Empowerment and Opportunity, the Managing
22 Director, the Managing Director - Legal
23 Services, the Department of Streets, the
24 Fire Department, the Department of Public

1 Health, the Department of Public Property,
2 the Department of Human Services - Office of
3 Supportive Housing, the Director of Finance,
4 the Department of Revenue, the City
5 Representative, the Director of Commerce,
6 the Law Department, the Board of Trustees of
7 the Free Library of Philadelphia, the
8 Commission on Human Relations, the Auditing
9 Department, the Register of Wills and the
10 City Commissioners.

11 Bill No. 160136: An Ordinance amending
12 Bill No. 150163 (approved June 18, 2015),
13 entitled "An Ordinance to adopt a Fiscal
14 2016 Capital Budget," by adding and revising
15 certain projects, amounts and sources, under
16 certain terms and conditions.

17 Bill No. 160137: An Ordinance amending
18 Bill No. 150162 (approved June 18, 2015),
19 entitled "An Ordinance to adopt a Capital
20 Program for the six Fiscal Years 2016-2021
21 inclusive," as amended by Bill No. 150611
22 (approved October 20, 2015), as amended by
23 Bill No. 150790 (approved December 1, 2015),
24 by adding and revising certain projects,

1 amounts and sources, under certain terms and
2 conditions.

3 Bill No. 160150: An Ordinance
4 authorizing transfers in appropriations for
5 Fiscal Year 2016 within the General Fund
6 relating to the City Council -- to the
7 Council.

8 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Thank
9 you. Thank you.

10 For the purposes of time, we have
11 written testimony that we circulated on
12 Friday when we got them to the entire
13 Committee. I'm going to have Anna Adams,
14 the Budget Director, testify. But any of my
15 Council colleagues who wish to ask any
16 specific questions on any of the
17 departments, be happy to call the
18 Commissioners up if you choose to do so.

19 Thank you.

20 MS. ADAMS: Thank you. Would you like
21 me to read my testimony for the record?

22 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Yes.
23 Why don't you do yours.

24 MS. ADAMS: So, start off with Bill No.

1 160134.

2 Bill No. 160134 provides transfer from
3 the Grant Revenue Fund to the General Fund
4 as well as an internal transfer from the
5 General Fund in the amount -- we actually
6 submitted an amendment. I will give the --
7 my testimony reflects an earlier version.
8 But the amount is 17,171,605.

9 The 1.5 million to the Managing
10 Director, Legal Services to fund a
11 \$1.1 million increase to the Defenders
12 Association Contract for increased benefit
13 costs. And a \$400,000 increase to the
14 Community Legal Services contract to serve
15 more indigent families and for expungement
16 work.

17 \$174,838 to the Managing Director to
18 increase the operating budget of the
19 Philadelphia Energy Authority; 425,000 to
20 the Mayor's Office of Community Empowerment
21 and Opportunity to allow them to continue to
22 fund anti-poverty initiatives despite flat
23 federal funding in recent years, to fund
24 matching requirements for the CHOICE Grant

1 and to increase enrollment in public
2 benefits.

3 334,000 to the Law Department and
4 108,000 to the Department of Revenue to fund
5 merit wage increases for lawyers. 495,000
6 to the Department of Revenue composed of an
7 additional \$300,000 for more frequent
8 billings to positively impact revenue
9 collections; and \$195,000 funded by an
10 internal transfer to fund additional tax
11 preparations for the Earned Income Tax
12 Credit Program.

13 And the next 1.106875 to the Director of
14 Commerce to create a new indoor meal site
15 where organizations wishing to feed
16 vulnerable populations can provide meals in
17 a dignified setting where critical social
18 services can be provided.

19 Internal realignments within the Free
20 Library of 250,000; and the Commission on
21 Human Relations for 50,000; \$700,000 to the
22 Department of Streets to fund an increase in
23 overtime costs do to compactor shortage;
24 \$420,000 to the Auditing Department

1 including \$100,000 of internal realignment
2 to fund additional staffing needs.

3 \$175,594 to the Department of Human
4 Services, Office of Supportive Housing to
5 fund utilities at the homeless shelter at
6 6901 Woodland Avenue and to support the HUD
7 mandated homeless management information
8 system.

9 250,000 to the Register of Wills to fund
10 the restoration of records and to fund
11 additional staff. \$50,000 to the City
12 Representative to fund -- fully fund
13 previously vacant position.

14 \$5,739,378 to the Department of Public
15 Health to fund additional revenue --
16 additional financial support to county
17 nursing homes under the Medical Assistant
18 Programs, which is offset by some revenue.
19 \$2.3 million to the Director of Finance for
20 payments of the employee share of a FICA
21 settlement with the IRS.

22 \$175,000 to the City Commissioners to
23 provide funding for the notification mailing
24 related to the Presidential primary.

1 \$500,000 to Department of Public
2 Property to increase contracted costs for
3 maintenance of buildings.

4 \$2.4 million to the Fire Department
5 which includes \$1 million for higher than
6 anticipated premium pay; and \$1.4 million to
7 pay for an additional firefighter class.

8 I respectfully request that you report
9 this bill out of committee with a favorable
10 recommendation. And I further request that
11 Rules of Council be suspended so as to
12 permit first reading at our next session of
13 Council. I appreciate the opportunity to
14 testify before the Committee today and would
15 be happy to answer any questions that you
16 have.

17 Additionally, representatives from the
18 departments involved with the transfers are
19 available, as well. I also have testimony
20 for --

21 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: 36 and
22 37, go ahead.

23 MS. ADAMS: Yes. Would you like me to
24 read that ones in?

1 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Please
2 do so.

3 MS. ADAMS: Good morning, Chairwoman
4 Sanchez and Members of the Appropriations
5 Committee. Again, I'm Anna Adams, the
6 Budget Director. I'm here this morning to
7 testify -- or this afternoon to testify on
8 the Finance Department's request that
9 \$3 million in appropriations be added to the
10 FY16 Capital Budget as well as the FY16-21
11 Capital Program.

12 These funds will permit the City to
13 receive Neighborhood Transformation Funds,
14 NTI funds, from the Redevelopment Authority
15 to utilize on City capital projects.
16 According to our Bond Counsel, there is an
17 expenditure deadline of March 31, 2016 on
18 NTI tax exempt and qualified redevelopment
19 bond proceeds.

20 These appropriations will allow the City
21 to meet this deadline by spending the funds
22 on capital eligible expenditures such as the
23 renovation of fire stations, recreation
24 centers and facilities owned by the City.

1 Thank you for the opportunity to testify
2 today. If you have any further questions or
3 concerns, I'll be happy to answer them at
4 this time.

5 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Thank
6 you. Can you address the amendment the
7 Administration is proposing on 134?

8 MS. ADAMS: So we are proposing to
9 reduce the original appropriation that we
10 submitted had a \$1.4 million to the
11 Department of Commerce. And we proposing to
12 reduce that to \$1.1 million.

13 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Okay.

14 I want to recognize Councilman David Oh
15 has joined me to my right and Councilman
16 Kenyatta Johnson to my left. I will repeat
17 for the record, we have asked the Budget
18 Director to testify on behalf of all these
19 transfers. We'd be happy to have any of the
20 Commissioners come forward if anyone has any
21 questions.

22 Councilman Domb.

23 COUNCILMAN DOMB: Since I'm new, I have
24 a few questions. You may not probably have

1 the answers.

2 For the Commerce Program that went down
3 300,000 or so, how many -- are you talking
4 about feeding people on a daily basis?

5 How many people are you talking about?
6 Where are these meals going to be delivered?

7 MS. ADAMS: And so, we have a -- that
8 will accompany the amendment and the
9 testimony, we have a letter that we will
10 submit as part of the record which explains
11 about where the location of the emergency
12 feeding site is proposed to be. And then
13 I'll ask Eva Gladstein to come up and also
14 answer any questions.

15 MS. GLADSTEIN: Good afternoon. Eva
16 Gladstein, Deputy Managing Director for
17 Health and Human Services.

18 We are looking at filling times when
19 there is the most needs, starting with
20 probably three meals -- three new meal times
21 per week. And then gradually over -- that
22 will be for six months and then growing to
23 seven meal times per week, over about a year
24 and a half time.

1 COUNCILMAN DOMB: How many people are
2 you thinking of feeding?

3 MS. GLADSTEIN: We are looking at
4 feeding approximately 200 people at any
5 particular meal time.

6 COUNCILMAN DOMB: Is that for the whole
7 year?

8 MS. GLADSTEIN: Yes. Yes.

9 COUNCILMAN DOMB: How many questions?

10 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Continue.

11 COUNCILMAN DOMB: This has to do with
12 the Department of Streets the 700,000. Says
13 we had that cost because we had overtime
14 cost due to a compactor shortage.

15 MS. ADAMS: Yes.

16 COUNCILMAN DOMB: I was just curious, A,
17 how that happened; and B, have we stocked up
18 on the compactors and what do they costs and
19 how do we avoid that?

20 MS. ADAMS: In the proposed budget that
21 we have -- we just proposed, we added
22 additional funding for additional \$8 million
23 in the capital budget for increased number
24 of Streets Department vehicles. But we also

1 have been making changes this year to make
2 sure that we can make sure that we don't
3 have this issue again.

4 COUNCILMAN DOMB: Another question I
5 have, is this just a transfer of funds? The
6 5.7 million to the Department of Public
7 Health is the biggest number on this list.
8 Just want to understand what's going on
9 there.

10 MS. ADAMS: And I can ask some
11 representatives from the Health Department
12 to come up. But this is -- we have -- they
13 are probably better at explaining this than
14 I can. But this -- that cost will be fully
15 offset by additional revenue coming in from
16 the state. In fact, we are assuming an
17 additional 1.4 million above the amount
18 coming in from revenue. But Tara Mohr can
19 help answer that.

20 MS. MOHR: Good morning or good
21 afternoon. My name is Tara Mohr. I'm
22 Deputy Commissioner for Financial
23 Administration for the Department of Public
24 Health.

1 We have been working with the Department
2 of Human Services at the Commonwealth and
3 their consultant on this financial model to
4 bring in more revenue for the nursing home.
5 And the amount that was put into the
6 transfer ordinance is the amount that was
7 provided by the consultants in working with
8 DHS.

9 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Can you
10 explain the fee structure?

11 I think he needs -- it would be great
12 for the Councilman to understand that some
13 of these are reimbursable and fee for
14 services just so that he knows how they wash
15 out.

16 MS. MOHR: I will try to explain it to
17 the best of my ability. The -- this model
18 is an intergovernmental transfer ordinance
19 or intergovernmental transfer program where
20 we match -- we give money to the state. The
21 state matches those dollars, and then
22 transfers -- information transfers money to
23 or -- excuse me.

24 MS. ADAMS: It's hard.

1 MS. MOHR: It is hard.

2 The money that we give to the state is
3 matched at the federal level. The Federal
4 Government gives the money back to the state
5 as a match with the Medicaid Program, the
6 Medicare Program. That money comes back to
7 the City. All of that \$5.7 million that we
8 are matching with the state comes back to
9 the City with some. So --

10 COUNCILMAN DOMB: That's great. I want
11 to make sure we get the money back.

12 MS. ADAMS: Yes. We have assumed that
13 in the budget, too. We have assumed the
14 revenue coming back in. It's actually an
15 additional amount of revenue for us paying
16 out this \$5.7 million.

17 COUNCILMAN DOMB: One last question. I
18 had mentioned this to you earlier. By the
19 way, it was a great presentation. Thank
20 you. Thank you, Councilwoman Sanchez, for
21 allowing me to ask these questions, too.

22 The \$2.3 million, how do we avoid that
23 in the future? I understand that's a
24 settlement, a FICA settlement of which there

1 was conversion of benefits and there should
2 have been a tax on those benefits.

3 MS. ADAMS: That's right.

4 COUNCILMAN DOMB: So, the recipient of
5 those benefits didn't pay the tax, but the
6 city has to pay it. How do we avoid that in
7 the future? Is there some sort of forms we
8 can have signed that say if we make this
9 mistake, we can go back to the people and
10 collect the money?

11 It's 2.3 million the City is going to
12 lose.

13 MS. ADAMS: I will ask Valerie Hayes,
14 who is the Payroll Director, to come up and
15 help with that.

16 COUNCILMAN DOMB: I'm just looking for a
17 form going forward. We can't go back. But
18 going forward -- we're going to make
19 mistakes. I just want to have a form in
20 place so we can recover the money.

21 MS. HAYES: Hello. My name is Valerie
22 Hayes. I'm the Payroll Director for finance
23 department. And we felt exactly -- which
24 handles the payroll citywide, and we felt

1 exactly as yourself. So as soon as we found
2 out beginning last year, we have revamped
3 the entire process. We have notified all
4 the HR managers and Payroll people in the
5 operating department. And they are now
6 required to have the employees sign a form.
7 And we have also provided education about
8 the tax.

9 COUNCILMAN DOMB: That's great. Thank
10 you.

11 MS. HAYES: You're very welcome.

12 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Thank
13 you.

14 Councilwoman Parker.

15 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
16 Chair.

17 Good morning. Thank you so very much
18 for your testimony. I quickly just want to
19 go back to Streets and -- and just a quick
20 question. Councilwoman Sanchez just
21 reminded me that you mentioned that there
22 was \$8 million in capital to buy more
23 compactors.

24 Did we have a specific number? Like, do

1 we know how many? And when you think about
2 the total overtime costs in FY15, do you
3 know what that total costs was? And do we,
4 like, have any sort of projection that we
5 can sort of put on the record about 16?

6 (Department Members approach table.)

7 Good afternoon, fellas. Thank you so
8 much for joining us.

9 MR. NEWMAN: Good afternoon. Chris
10 Newman, Deputy Commissioner for
11 Administration for the Streets Department.

12 It was \$4.5 million in overtime in FY15
13 as a result of the compactor shortage. We
14 are getting 35 compactors a year for our
15 replacement schedule. And it's \$7 million a
16 year we have dedicated towards our vehicle
17 replacement schedule out of the Capital
18 Program.

19 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Okay. Thank you.
20 We just wanted to make sure that we got
21 those facts so the -- on the record, so we
22 know what the actual number is.

23 And finally, you may have mentioned this
24 Ms. Adams, and I just did not hear you. Can

1 you just, for the record, talk about the
2 1.1 million for the Defender's Association
3 contract, and talk about why that amount
4 wasn't included in the original contract?
5 Just for an educational sort of overview for
6 my benefit.

7 MS. ADAMS: So, I'm going to ask some
8 people from the Managing Director's Office
9 to help come up and answer this.

10 But the Defender's Association contract,
11 we covered that benefit cost. Unlike with
12 other agencies like the Defender's of -- the
13 DA, for example, that benefit is budgeted
14 within the rest of the City's benefits. But
15 for the Defender's Association, as is a
16 contract within the Managing Director's
17 Office, we pay for the benefits as part of
18 the total contract.

19 But I'll also let the Managing
20 Director's Office help answer some of those
21 questions.

22 MS. WERTHEIMER: Good afternoon. Julie
23 Wertheimer, Chief of Staff to the Deputy
24 Managing Director for Criminal Justice in

1 the Managing Director's Office.

2 The Budget Director is absolutely
3 correct because we basically fund the
4 Defender Association in its entirety. We
5 cover their benefit costs. However, we do
6 not manage their benefit plans. And so,
7 like other benefit plans, especially outside
8 government, costs increase every year. And
9 we are obligated to cover them to make sure
10 that they can meet their payroll and benefit
11 needs for all of their employees.

12 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you. That's
13 it, Madam Chair. Thank you.

14 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: And
15 Councilman Oh.

16 COUNCILMAN OH: Thank you very much
17 Chairwoman.

18 Good morning, how are you?

19 MS. ADAMS: Good afternoon.

20 COUNCILMAN OH: I'm new, don't know
21 anything. Trying to figure this out, all
22 these big numbers. Would you help me with
23 that?

24 I'm looking at Bill No. 160134. And

1 particularly under new loans for 2016, I
2 believe that is \$149.9 million; is that
3 correct? On page two of the ordinance under
4 Exhibit A.

5 MS. ADAMS: I'm sorry. I'm not fully
6 sure what you're looking at.

7 COUNCILMAN OH: I'm sorry. It's 160136.

8 MS. ADAMS: Okay.

9 COUNCILMAN OH: Sorry about that.

10 MS. ADAMS: That's okay.

11 COUNCILMAN OH: And page 2 under Exhibit
12 A.

13 MS. ADAMS: And your question? Sorry.
14 What was your question?

15 COUNCILMAN OH: Under city funds tax
16 supported, there is a category for New
17 Loans. And it's \$149.9 million. And is
18 that a new loan? No? Somebody shaking
19 their head no.

20 MS. ADAMS: I'm going to have the
21 Capital Budget Director come and help me.

22 COUNCILMAN OH: Oh, okay. Thank you.

23 MS. CHEN: Good afternoon. My name is
24 Peilin Chen. I'm the Capital Budget

1 Director. And the 149.963 simply refers to
2 the GO, the General Obligation bonds that
3 were approved last year as part of the
4 Capital Budget for FY16. So the code CN
5 just means the General Obligation Fund.
6 This was already approved.

7 COUNCILMAN OH: So, this was already
8 approved last year. Bonds were issued.

9 MS. ADAMS: Yes. The way that it works
10 is with the Capital Budget, we show you the
11 GO portion is what -- kind of the general
12 capital budget, and that's what we borrow
13 for. And that is what this shows.

14 COUNCILMAN OH: And so between 2016 and
15 2021, it -- the number is \$861 million for
16 this bond?

17 MS. CHEN: So, we typically borrow on an
18 annual basis. The numbers in the out years
19 are just predictions or estimates for what
20 we think we will borrow in the following --
21 in the out years.

22 COUNCILMAN OH: Right. Is this a
23 typical kind of year-to-year borrowing
24 that's done?

1 MS. CHEN: Yes.

2 MS. ADAMS: We may borrow every other
3 year depending on how quickly the spend goes
4 down. We don't borrow unless we need the
5 money to be able to spend that down. We
6 wait until we need that cash, and then we
7 borrow that money at the time to reduce our
8 costs. We don't want to pay any more debt
9 service than we need to.

10 COUNCILMAN OH: Okay. Thank you very
11 much. Thanks.

12 MS. CHEN: You're welcome.

13 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Thank
14 you. I am going to recognize Councilwoman
15 Parker again.

16 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
17 Chair.

18 Ms. Adams, for me just for the record,
19 no need for Capital to come back up -- if
20 you could find a way to provide us an update
21 of how this adjustment impacts all Council
22 districts as it relates to their respective
23 capital budgets, that would be greatly
24 appreciated.

1 MS. ADAMS: Absolutely.

2 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Yes. If
3 you can submit that to the Chair, we will
4 make sure that it gets circulated
5 particularly or updated NTI schedule.

6 MS. ADAMS: Absolutely.

7 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: I had a
8 question for the Commissioners Office on
9 this mailing. If Commissioner Schmidt could
10 come forward.

11 (Commissioners approach Witness Table.)

12 MS. CRAWFORD-KEITH: Hi. I'm Budget
13 Officer Valerie Crawford-Keith, Budget
14 Officer for the City Commissioner's Office.

15 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Thank
16 you. With this mailing list, which I am
17 glad we're doing. It's a presidential.
18 What happens with the returns that comes
19 back as undeliverable and unmailed?

20 MR. SCHMIDT: With the returns that come
21 back, Councilwoman, what we do is we plan on
22 looking those up to see if these people are
23 still registered at those addresses. What
24 happens a lot of times is if they are going

1 to a large apartment building and they don't
2 have an apartment anymore, it's hard for the
3 postman to deliver them. What we will do is
4 we will look these up. And those that come
5 back undeliverable, we will send out an AVN
6 which is Address Verification Notice, for
7 verification.

8 If it comes back as undeliverable or
9 without a response, they are still there.
10 Then according to law, we are allowed to go
11 in and make their records inactive. Once we
12 do that, they will have two federal general
13 elections before we can remove them from the
14 voting rolls.

15 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Is there
16 anything to stop you from visiting and doing
17 a site verification?

18 MR. SCHMIDT: That would be manpower.
19 That would be the only drawback of doing a
20 site visitation for each one that comes back
21 undeliverable.

22 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Okay.
23 Well, I would like to see after this mailing
24 what those returns are. And we would really

1 like to have a discussion about that as we
2 look at cleaning up the list, how many come
3 back.

4 Can you report back to the Committee?

5 MR. SCHMIDT: Yes. We definitely will.

6 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Okay.

7 Thank you.

8 MR. SCHMIDT: You're welcome.

9 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
10 other questions for any of the other
11 Commissioners?

12 Seeing none, we will go into the
13 Appropriations Meeting. I need a --

14 - - -

15 (At this time, Public Hearing ends and
16 Public Meeting Commences.)

17 - - -

18 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
19 Chair. I move that this Committee adopt
20 Bill -- adopt the amendment offered for Bill
21 No. 160134.

22 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All in
23 favor?

24 COUNCILMAN OH: Did we get a second?

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 27

1 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Oh,
2 yeah. Second?

3 COUNCILMAN OH: Second.

4 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All in
5 favor?

6 - - -

7 (Chorus of Ayes)

8 - - -

9 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
10 oppositions?

11 Seeing none, the amendment to Bill
12 160134 has been adopted. A motion with the
13 amended bill.

14 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
15 Chair. I now move that this Committee adopt
16 Bill No. 160134 as amended.

17 COUNCILMAN OH: Second.

18 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All
19 those in favor?

20 - - -

21 (Chorus of Ayes)

22 - - -

23 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
24 opposition?

1 Seeing none, Bill No. 160134 --

2 (Discussion held off the record.)

3 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: I'm
4 sorry.

5 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: So, Madam Chair,
6 let's rescind our prior action. I move that
7 Bill 160134 as amended, that the rules for
8 this committee be suspended so that to
9 permit immediate consideration of Bill
10 160134 as amended.

11 COUNCILMAN OH: Second.

12 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All in
13 favor?

14 (Chorus of Ayes)

15 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Seeing
16 none, any oppositions, Bill No. 160134 as
17 amended will be moved from this Committee
18 with a favorable recommendation; and further
19 move, that the Rules of Council be suspended
20 to permit first hearing at our next public
21 session.

22 Can I get a motion on the two other
23 bills?

24 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 29

1 Chair. I move that this Committee to adopt
2 Bill No. 160136.

3 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
4 seconds?

5 COUNCILMAN DOMB: Second.

6 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All in
7 favor?

8 (Chorus of Ayes)

9 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
10 opposition?

11 Seeing none, Bill No -- oh, I need a
12 rules suspension. I'm sorry.

13 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
14 Chair.

15 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: I'm
16 surprised Anna's not screaming over there.

17 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
18 Chair. I move that the rules of this
19 Committee, the Rules of Council be suspended
20 so as to permit immediate consideration of
21 Bill No. 160136.

22 COUNCILMAN OH: Second.

23 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All in
24 favor?

1 (Chorus of Ayes)

2 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
3 opposition?

4 Seeing none, Bill 1 -- Bill 160136 will
5 be moved out of this Committee with a
6 favorable recommendation; and further move,
7 that the Rules of Council be suspended to
8 permit first reading at our next public
9 session.

10 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
11 Chair. I move that the Rules of Council be
12 suspended so as to permit immediate
13 consideration of Bill No. 160137.

14 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Seconds?

15 COUNCILMAN JOHNSON: Second.

16 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: She has
17 to say a motion to --

18 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: You know, these
19 guys operate a whole lot different than
20 Harrisburg.

21 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: I'm
22 sorry. I'm putting her through a training
23 course here.

24

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 31

1 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Madam Chair, I
2 make a motion that the Rules of Council be
3 suspended so as to permit immediate
4 consideration of Bill No. 160137.

5 Councilman Oh, am I on track there with
6 the motion?

7 COUNCILMAN OH: I think so.

8 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Okay. All right.

9 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All in
10 favor?

11 - - -

12 (Chorus of Ayes)

13 - - -

14 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
15 opposition?

16 Seeing none, Bill 160137 will be moved
17 out of this Committee with a favorable
18 recommendation; and further move that the
19 Rules of Council be suspended to permit
20 first reading at our next public meeting.

21 There you go. One more.

22 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: Thank you, Madam
23 Chair. I move that the rules -- I move that
24 the rules of --

1 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: No.

2 COUNCILWOMAN PARKER: I make a motion
3 that the Rules of Council be suspended so as
4 to permit immediate consideration of Bill
5 No. 160150.

6 COUNCILMAN OH: Second.

7 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: All in
8 favor?

9 (Chorus of Ayes)

10 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ: Any
11 opposition?

12 Seeing none, Bill 160150 will be moved
13 out of this Committee with a favorable
14 recommendation; and further move that the
15 Rules of Council be suspended to allow first
16 reading at our next public meeting.

17 That concludes our Appropriations
18 meeting.

19 (Appropriations Meeting adjourns at 1:43
20 p.m.)

21

22

23

24

C E R T I F I C A T I O N

I, hereby certify that the proceedings and evidence noted are contained fully and accurately in the stenographic notes taken by me in the foregoing matter, and that this is a correct transcript of the same.

ANGELA M. KING, RPR
Court Reporter - Notary Public

(The foregoing certification of this transcript does not apply to any reproduction of the same by any means, unless under the direct control and/or supervision of the certifying reporter.)

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 1

A	afternoon 9:7 11:15 13:21 18:7,9 19:22 20:19 21:23 agencies 19:12 ahead 8:22 ALLAN 1:10 allow 5:21 9:20 32:15 allowed 25:10 allowing 15:21 amended 3:21,22 27:13,16 28:7,10,17 amending 3:11,17 amendment 5:6 10:6 11:8 26:20 27:11 amount 5:5,8 13:17 14:5 14:6 15:15 19:3 amounts 3:15 4:1 and/or 33:18 ANGELA 33:11 Anna 4:13 9:5 Anna's 29:16 annual 22:18 answer 8:15 10:3 11:14 13:19 19:9 19:20 answers 11:1 anti-poverty 5:22 anticipated 8:6 anymore 25:2 apartment 25:1,2 apply 33:16 appreciate 8:13 appreciated	23:24 approach 18:6 24:11 appropriati... 2:13 10:9 appropriati... 1:2 2:4 4:4 9:4,9,20 26:13 32:17 32:19 approved 3:12,18,22 3:23 22:3,6 22:8 approximat... 12:4 asked 10:17 Assistant 7:17 Association 5:12 19:2 19:10,15 20:4 assumed 15:12,13 assuming 13:16 Auditing 2:17 3:8 6:24 Authority 5:19 9:14 authorizing 2:12 4:4 available 8:19 Avenue 7:6 AVN 25:5 avoid 12:19 15:22 16:6 Ayes 27:7,21 28:14 29:8 30:1 31:12 32:9	basis 11:4 22:18 beginning 17:2 behalf 10:18 believe 21:2 benefit 5:12 19:6,11,13 20:5,6,7,10 benefits 6:2 16:1,2,5 19:14,17 best 14:17 better 13:13 big 20:22 biggest 13:7 bill 2:10,11 3:11,12,17 3:18,21,23 4:3,24 5:2 8:9 20:24 26:20,20 27:11,13,16 28:1,7,9,16 29:2,11,21 30:4,4,13 31:4,16 32:4,12 billings 6:8 bills 1:15 2:10 28:23 Blackwell 1:10 2:6 Board 2:15 3:6 BOBBY 1:11 bond 9:16,19 22:16 bonds 22:2,8 borrow 22:12 22:17,20 23:2,4,7 borrowing 22:23 bring 14:4 budget 3:14 4:14 5:18 9:6,10 10:17 12:20 12:23 15:13 20:2 21:21 21:24 22:4 22:10,12 basically 20:3	24:12,13 budgeted 19:13 budgets 23:23 building 25:1 buildings 8:3 buy 17:22 C C 33:1,1 call 4:17 called 2:4 capital 3:14 3:19 9:10 9:11,15,22 12:23 17:22 18:17 21:21 21:24 22:4 22:10,12 23:19,23 cash 23:6 category 21:16 centers 9:24 certain 3:15 3:16,24 4:1 certification 33:15 certify 33:3 certifying 33:19 Chair 1:9 17:16 20:13 23:17 24:3 26:19 27:15 28:5 29:1 29:14,18 30:11 31:1 31:23 Chairwoman 9:3 20:17 changes 13:1 Chen 21:23 21:24 22:17 23:1,12 Cherelle 1:12 2:8 Chief 19:23 CHOICE 5:24 choose 4:18 Chorus 27:7 27:21 28:14	29:8 30:1 31:12 32:9 Chris 18:9 circulated 4:11 24:4 city 1:1,5 3:4 3:10 4:6 7:11,22 9:12,15,20 9:24 15:7,9 16:6,11 21:15 24:14 City's 19:14 citywide 16:24 class 8:7 cleaning 26:2 Clerk 2:9,11 CN 22:4 code 22:4 colleagues 4:15 collect 16:10 collections 6:9 come 10:20 11:13 13:12 16:14 19:9 21:21 23:19 24:10,20 25:4 26:2 comes 15:6,8 24:18 25:8 25:20 coming 13:15 13:18 15:14 Commences 26:16 Commerce 3:5 6:14 10:11 11:2 Commission 2:16 3:8 6:20 Commissio... 13:22 18:10 24:9 Commissio... 24:14 Commissio... 3:10 4:18 7:22 10:20 24:8,11	26:11 committee 1:2 4:13 8:9 8:14 9:5 26:4,19 27:15 28:8 28:17 29:1 29:19 30:5 31:17 32:13 Commonwe... 14:2 Community 2:20 5:14 5:20 compactor 6:23 12:14 18:13 compactors 12:18 17:23 18:14 composed 6:6 concerns 10:3 concludes 32:17 conditions 3:16 4:2 consideration 28:9 29:20 30:13 31:4 32:4 consultant 14:3 consultants 14:7 contained 33:5 continue 5:21 12:10 contract 5:12 5:14 19:3,4 19:10,16,18 contracted 8:2 control 33:18 conversion 16:1 correct 20:3 21:3 33:8 cost 12:13,14 13:14 19:11 costs 5:13 6:23 8:2 12:18 18:2	18:3 20:5,8 23:8 Council 1:1 4:6,7,15 8:11,13 23:21 28:19 29:19 30:7 30:11 31:2 31:19 32:3 32:15 Councilman 1:9,10,11 1:11 2:7,8 10:14,15,22 10:23 12:1 12:6,9,11 12:16 13:4 14:12 15:10 15:17 16:4 16:16 17:9 20:15,16,20 21:7,9,11 21:15,22 22:7,14,22 23:10 26:24 27:3,17 28:11 29:5 29:22 30:15 31:5,7 32:6 Councilwo... 1:9,10,12 2:2,6,7 4:8 4:22 8:21 9:1 10:5,13 12:10 14:9 15:20 17:12 17:14,15,20 18:19 20:12 20:14 23:13 23:14,16 24:2,7,15 24:21 25:15 25:22 26:6 26:9,18,22 27:1,4,9,14 27:18,23 28:3,5,12 28:15,24 29:3,6,9,13 29:15,17,23 30:2,10,14 30:16,18,21 31:1,8,9,14
----------	---	---	--	---	---	--	---

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 2

31:22 32:1 32:2,7,10 Counsel 9:16 county 7:16 course 30:23 Court 33:12 cover 20:5,9 covered 19:11 Crawford-... 24:12,13 create 6:14 Credit 6:12 Criminal 19:24 critical 6:17 curious 12:16	18:11 Departmenten... 9:8 departments 4:17 8:18 depending 23:3 Deputy 11:16 13:22 18:10 19:23 despite 5:22 DHS 14:8 different 30:19 dignified 6:17 direct 33:18 Director 2:18 2:22,22 3:3 3:5 4:14 5:10,17 6:13 7:19 9:6 10:18 11:16 16:14 16:22 19:24 20:2 21:21 22:1 Director's 19:8,16,20 20:1 discussion 26:1 28:2 districts 23:22 doing 24:17 25:16,19 dollars 14:21 Domb 1:10 2:7 10:22 10:23 12:1 12:6,9,11 12:16 13:4 15:10,17 16:4,16 17:9 29:5 drawback 25:19 due 12:14	17:7 educational 19:5 elections 25:13 eligible 9:22 emergency 11:11 employee 7:20 employees 17:6 20:11 Empowerm... 2:21 5:20 ends 26:15 Energy 5:19 enrollment 6:1 entire 4:12 17:3 entirety 20:4 entitled 3:13 3:19 especially 20:7 established 2:5 estimates 22:19 Eva 11:13,15 evidence 33:4 exactly 16:23 17:1 example 19:13 excuse 14:23 exempt 9:18 Exhibit 21:4 21:11 expenditure 9:17 expenditures 9:22 explain 14:10 14:16 explaining 13:13 explains 11:10 expungement 5:15	facilities 9:24 fact 13:16 facts 18:21 families 5:15 far 2:6 favor 26:23 27:5,19 28:13 29:7 29:24 31:10 32:8 favorable 8:9 28:18 30:6 31:17 32:13 federal 5:23 15:3,3 25:12 fee 14:10,13 feed 6:15 feeding 11:4 11:12 12:2 12:4 fellas 18:7 felt 16:23,24 FICA 7:20 15:24 figure 20:21 filling 11:18 finally 18:23 finance 2:18 3:3 7:19 9:8 16:22 financial 7:16 13:22 14:3 find 23:20 fire 2:24 8:4 9:23 firefighter 8:7 first 8:12 28:20 30:8 31:20 32:15 Fiscal 2:13 3:13,20 4:5 flat 5:22 following 22:20 foregoing 33:7,15 form 16:17 16:19 17:6 forms 16:7 forward 10:20 16:17	16:18 24:10 found 17:1 Free 2:15 3:7 6:19 frequent 6:7 Friday 4:12 fully 7:12 13:14 21:5 33:5 fund 2:14,18 2:20 4:5 5:3 5:3,5,10,22 5:23 6:4,10 6:22 7:2,5,9 7:10,12,12 7:15 20:3 22:5 funded 6:9 funding 5:23 7:23 12:22 funds 9:12,13 9:14,21 13:5 21:15 further 8:10 10:2 28:18 30:6 31:18 32:14 future 15:23 16:7 FY15 18:2,12 FY16 9:10 22:4 FY16-21 9:10	11:6 13:8 16:11,17,18 16:18 19:7 21:20 23:14 24:24 good 9:3 11:15 13:20 13:20 17:17 18:7,9 19:22 20:18 20:19 21:23 government 15:4 20:8 gradually 11:21 Grant 5:3,24 grants 2:18 2:19 great 14:11 15:10,19 17:9 greatly 23:23 growing 11:22 guys 30:19	16:15 19:9 19:20 20:22 21:21 Henon 1:11 2:8 Hi 24:12 higher 8:5 home 14:4 homeless 7:5 7:7 homes 7:17 Housing 3:3 7:4 HR 17:4 HUD 7:6 Human 2:16 3:2,8 6:21 7:3 11:17 14:2	issue 13:3 issued 22:8 J JANNIE 1:10 Johnson 1:9 10:16 30:15 joined 10:15 joining 18:8 Julie 19:22 June 3:12,18 Justice 19:24 K Kenyatta 1:9 10:16 kind 22:11,23 KING 33:11 know 18:1,3 18:22 20:20 30:18 knows 14:14 L L 1:10,12 large 25:1 law 3:6 6:3 25:10 lawyers 6:5 left 2:7 10:16 Legal 2:22 5:10,14 let's 28:6 letter 11:9 level 15:3 Library 2:15 3:7 6:20 list 13:7 24:16 26:2 loan 21:18 loans 21:1,17 location 11:11 look 25:4 26:2 looking 11:18 12:3 16:16 20:24 21:6 24:22 lose 16:12 lot 24:24 30:19 M
D 1:9 DA 19:13 daily 11:4 David 1:11 10:14 deadline 9:17 9:21 debt 23:8 December 3:23 dedicated 18:16 Defender 20:4 Defender's 19:2,10,12 19:15 Defenders 5:11 definitely 26:5 deliver 25:3 delivered 11:6 department 2:14,17,23 2:24,24 3:1 3:2,4,6,9 6:3,4,6,22 6:24 7:3,14 8:1,4 10:11 12:12,24 13:6,11,23 14:1 16:23 17:5 18:6	 						

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 3

M 33:11	20:10	N 33:1	21:7,9,11	29:17 30:10	presentation	qualified 9:18	record 4:21
Madam	meeting	name 13:21	21:15,22,22	30:18 31:1	15:19	question 13:4	10:17 11:10
17:15 20:13	26:13,16	16:21 21:23	22:7,14,22	31:8,22	presidential	15:17 17:20	18:5,21
23:16 26:18	31:20 32:16	need 23:4,6,9	23:10 26:24	32:2	7:24 24:17	21:13,14	19:1 23:18
27:14 28:5	32:18,19	23:19 26:13	27:1,3,17	part 11:10	previously	24:8	28:2
28:24 29:13	Members 9:4	29:11	28:11 29:11	19:17 22:3	7:13	questions	records 7:10
29:17 30:10	18:6	needs 7:2	29:22 31:5	particular	primary 7:24	4:16 8:15	25:11
31:1,22	mentioned	11:19 14:11	31:7 32:6	12:5	prior 28:6	10:2,21,24	recover 16:20
mailing 7:23	15:18 17:21	20:11	okay 10:13	particularly	probably	11:14 12:9	recreation
24:9,16	18:23	Neighborho...	18:19 21:8	21:1 24:5	10:24 11:20	15:21 19:21	9:23
25:23	merit 6:5	9:13	21:10,22	patience 2:3	13:13	26:10	redevelopm...
maintenance	million 5:9,11	new 6:14	23:10 25:22	pay 8:6,7	proceedings	quick 17:19	9:14,18
8:3	7:19 8:4,5,6	10:23 11:20	26:6 31:8	16:5,6	33:4	quickly 17:18	reduce 10:9
making 13:1	9:9 10:10	20:20 21:1	Once 25:11	19:17 23:8	proceeds 9:19	23:3	10:12 23:7
manage 20:6	10:12 12:22	21:16,18	ones 8:24	paying 15:15	process 17:3	QUINONE...	refers 22:1
management	13:6,17	Newman 18:9	operate 30:19	payments	program 3:20	1:9 2:2 4:8	reflects 5:7
7:7	15:7,16,22	18:10	operating	7:20	6:12 9:11	4:22 8:21	Register 3:9
managers	16:11 17:22	Notary 33:12	5:18 17:5	payroll 16:14	11:2 14:19	9:1 10:5,13	7:9
17:4	18:12,15	noted 33:4	opportunity	16:22,24	15:5,6	12:10 14:9	registered
Managing	19:2 21:2	notes 33:6	2:21 5:21	17:4 20:10	18:18	17:12 20:14	24:23
2:21,22 5:9	21:17 22:15	Notice 25:6	8:13 10:1	Peilin 21:24	Programs	23:13 24:2	reimbursable
5:17 11:16	mistake 16:9	notification	opposition	Pennsylvania	7:18	24:7,15	14:13
19:8,16,19	mistakes	7:23	27:24 29:10	1:5	projection	25:15,22	related 7:24
19:24 20:1	16:19	notified 17:3	30:3 31:15	people 11:4,5	18:4	26:6,9,22	relates 23:22
mandated 7:7	model 14:3	NTI 9:14,18	32:11	12:1,4 16:9	projects 3:15	27:1,4,9,18	relating 4:6
manpower	14:17	24:5	oppositions	17:4 19:8	3:24 9:15	27:23 28:3	Relations
25:18	Mohr 13:18	number	27:10 28:16	24:22	Property 3:1	28:12,15	2:17 3:8
March 1:6	13:20,21	12:23 13:7	order 2:5	permit 8:12	8:2	29:3,6,9,15	6:21
9:17	14:16 15:1	17:24 18:22	ordinance	9:12 28:9	proposed	29:23 30:2	reminded
MARIA 1:9	Monday 1:6	22:15	2:12 3:11	28:20 29:20	11:12 12:20	30:14,16,21	17:21
match 14:20	money 14:20	numbers	3:13,17,19	30:8,12	12:21	31:9,14	remove 25:13
15:5	14:22 15:2	20:22 22:18	4:3 14:6,18	31:3,19	proposing	32:1,7,10	renovation
matched 15:3	15:4,6,11	nursing 7:17	21:3	32:4	10:7,8,11	quorum 2:5	9:23
matches	16:10,20	14:4	organizations	Philadelphia	provide 6:16	R	repeat 10:16
14:21	23:5,7	O	6:15	1:1,5 2:16	7:23 23:20	R 33:1	replacement
matching	months 11:22	O 33:1	original 10:9	3:7 5:19	provided	read 2:9 4:21	18:15,17
5:24 15:8	morning 9:3	obligated	19:4	place 16:20	6:18 14:7	8:24	report 8:8
matter 33:7	9:6 13:20	20:9	outside 20:7	plan 24:21	17:7	reading 8:12	26:4
Mayor 2:20	17:17 20:18	Obligation	overtime 6:23	plans 20:6,7	provides 5:2	30:8 31:20	reporter
Mayor's 5:20	motion 27:12	22:2,5	12:13 18:2	Please 9:1	Provision	32:16	33:12,19
meal 6:14	28:22 30:17	October 3:22	18:12	populations	2:19	realignment	Representa...
11:20,23	31:2,6 32:2	offered 26:20	overview 19:5	6:16	public 2:24	7:1	3:5 7:12
12:5	move 26:19	Office 2:20	owned 9:24	portion 22:11	3:1 6:1 7:14	realignment	representat...
meals 6:16	27:15 28:6	3:2 5:20 7:4	P	position 7:13	8:1 13:6,23	6:19	8:17 13:11
11:6,20	28:19 29:1	19:8,17,20	p.m 1:6 32:20	positively 6:8	26:15,16	really 25:24	reproduction
means 22:5	29:18 30:6	20:1 24:8	page 21:3,11	postman 25:3	28:20 30:8	receive 9:13	33:17
33:17	30:11 31:18	24:14	Parker 1:12	predictions	31:20 32:16	recipient 16:4	request 8:8
Medicaid	31:23,23	Officer 24:13	2:8 17:14	22:19	33:12	recognize	8:10 9:8
15:5	32:14	24:14	17:15 18:19	premium 8:6	purposes	10:14 23:14	required 17:6
Medical 7:17	moved 28:17	offset 7:18	20:12 23:15	preparations	4:10	recommend...	requirements
Medicare	30:5 31:16	13:15	23:16 26:18	6:11	put 14:5 18:5	8:10 28:18	5:24
15:6	32:12	oh 1:11 10:14	27:14 28:5	PRESENT	putting 30:22	30:6 31:18	rescind 28:6
meet 9:21	N	20:15,16,20	28:24 29:13	1:8	Q	32:14	respectfully

Committee on Appropriations
March 7, 2016

Page 4

8:8 respective 23:22 response 25:9 rest 19:14 restoration 7:10 result 18:13 returns 24:18 24:20 25:24 revamped 17:2 revenue 2:14 2:18 3:4 5:3 6:4,6,8 7:15 7:18 13:15 13:18 14:4 15:14,15 revising 3:14 3:24 right 2:6 10:15 16:3 22:22 31:8 rolls 25:14 Room 1:5 RPR 33:11 rules 8:11 28:7,19 29:12,18,19 30:7,11 31:2,19,23 31:24 32:3 32:15	25:23 Seeing 26:12 27:11 28:1 28:15 29:11 30:4 31:16 32:12 send 25:5 serve 5:14 service 23:9 services 2:23 3:2 5:10,14 6:18 7:4 11:17 14:2 14:14 session 8:12 28:21 30:9 setting 6:17 settlement 7:21 15:24 15:24 seven 11:23 shaking 21:18 share 7:20 shelter 7:5 shortage 6:23 12:14 18:13 show 22:10 shows 22:13 sign 17:6 signed 16:8 simply 22:1 site 6:14 11:12 25:17 25:20 six 3:20 11:22 social 6:17 Somebody 21:18 soon 17:1 sorry 21:5,7,9 21:13 28:4 29:12 30:22 sort 16:7 18:4 18:5 19:5 sources 3:15 4:1 specific 4:16 17:24 spend 23:3,5 spending 9:21 staff 7:11	19:23 staffing 7:2 start 4:24 starting 11:19 state 13:16 14:20,21 15:2,4,8 stations 9:23 stenographic 33:6 stocked 12:17 stop 25:16 Streets 2:23 6:22 12:12 12:24 17:19 18:11 structure 14:10 submit 11:10 24:3 submitted 5:6 10:10 supervision 33:19 support 7:6 7:16 supported 21:16 Supportive 3:3 7:4 sure 13:2,2 15:11 18:20 20:9 21:6 24:4 surprised 29:16 suspended 8:11 28:8 28:19 29:19 30:7,12 31:3,19 32:3,15 suspension 29:12 system 7:8	Tara 13:18 13:21 tax 6:10,11 9:18 16:2,5 17:8 21:15 terms 3:16 4:1 testify 4:14 8:14 9:7,7 10:1,18 testimony 4:11,21 5:7 8:19 11:9 17:18 Thank 2:2,3 4:8,9,19,20 10:1,5 15:19,20 17:9,12,15 17:17 18:7 18:19 20:12 20:13,16 21:22 23:10 23:13,16 24:15 26:7 26:18 27:14 28:24 29:13 29:17 30:10 31:22 Thanks 23:11 think 14:11 18:1 22:20 31:7 thinking 12:2 three 11:20 11:20 time 4:10 10:4 11:24 12:5 23:7 26:15 times 11:18 11:20,23 24:24 title 2:9 today 8:14 10:2 total 18:2,3 19:18 track 31:5 training 30:22 transcript 33:8,16	transfer 5:2,4 6:10 13:5 14:6,18,19 transfers 2:12 4:4 8:18 10:19 14:22,22 Transform... 9:13 Trustees 2:15 3:6 try 14:16 Trying 20:21 two 21:3 25:12 28:22 typical 22:23 typically 22:17	want 10:14 13:8 15:10 16:19 17:18 23:8 wanted 18:20 wash 14:14 wasn't 19:4 way 15:19 22:9 23:20 we're 16:18 24:17 week 11:21 11:23 welcome 17:11 23:12 26:8 went 11:2 Wertheimer 19:22,23 Wills 3:9 7:9 wish 4:15 wishing 6:15 Witness 24:11 Woodland 7:6 work 5:16 working 14:1 14:7 works 22:9 written 4:11	30:4 1.1 5:11 10:12 19:2 1.106875 6:13 1.4 8:6 10:10 13:17 1.5 5:9 1.13 1:6 1.43 32:19 100,000 7:1 108,000 6:4 134 10:7 149.9 21:2,17 149.963 22:1 150162 3:18 150163 3:12 150611 3:21 150790 3:23 16 18:5 160134 1:15 2:11 5:1,2 20:24 26:21 27:12,16 28:1,7,10 28:16 160136 1:15 3:11 21:7 29:2,21 30:4 160137 1:15 3:17 30:13 31:4,16 160150 1:15 4:3 32:5,12 17,171,605 5:8 174,838 5:17 175,000 7:22 175,594 7:3 18 3:12,18 195,000 6:9	9:17 21:1 22:14 2016-2021 3:20 2021 22:15 250,000 6:20 7:9 3 3 9:9 300,000 6:7 11:3 31 9:17 334,000 6:3 35 18:14 36 8:21 37 8:22 4 4.5 18:12 400 1:5 400,000 5:13 420,000 6:24 425,000 5:19 495,000 6:5 5 5,739,378 7:14 5.7 13:6 15:7 15:16 50,000 6:21 7:11 500,000 8:1 6 6901 7:6 7 7 1:6 18:15 700,000 6:21 12:12 8 8 12:22 17:22 861 22:15
S Sanchez 9:4 15:20 17:20 Says 12:12 schedule 18:15,17 24:5 Schmidt 24:9 24:20 25:18 26:5,8 screaming 29:16 second 26:24 27:2,3,17 28:11 29:5 29:22 30:15 32:6 seconds 29:4 30:14 see 24:22		T T 33:1,1 table 18:6 24:11 taken 33:6 talk 19:1,3 talking 11:3,5	U undeliverable 24:19 25:5 25:8,21 understand 13:8 14:12 15:23 unmailed 24:19 update 23:20 updated 24:5 utilities 7:5 utilize 9:15	V vacant 7:13 Valerie 16:13 16:21 24:13 vehicle 18:16 vehicles 12:24 verification 25:6,7,17 version 5:7 VICE 1:9 visitation 25:20 visiting 25:16 voting 25:14 vulnerable 6:16	X Y yeah 27:2 year 2:13 4:5 11:23 12:7 13:1 17:2 18:14,16 20:8 22:3,8 23:3 year-to-year 22:23 years 3:20 5:23 22:18 22:21	Z 0 1 1 3:23 8:5	2 2 21:11 2.3 7:19 15:22 16:11 2.4 8:4 20 3:22 200 12:4 2015 3:12,18 3:22,23 2016 1:6 2:13 3:14 4:5